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The ca. 1817 Champion-Shepherdson Building is located on the northwest corner of
East Main Street and a narrow alley in Princeton, Kentucky (1970 pop., 6,292).
The Caldwell County Courthouse is one block west, and there are commercial
buildings of later dates flanking and facing the Champion-Shepherdson Building.
East Main Street serves as the commercial axis of Princeton, a rapidly expanding
community in Kentucky's Pennyroyal region.

This two-story building is constructed of brick and the walls rest on a regular stone
foundation. If presents a symmetrical five-bay facade to East Main. The three
inner bays of the first level are entrances--the entrance in the center opening onto

a straight flight of steps that leads to the second floor. Each entrance is approached
by two stone steps from the sidewalk. The windows have stone lintels below the
sills and jack arches abeve, the bricks of the facade are laid in Flemish bond, and
corbelled cornices are on the front and rear.

A parapet rises above the roof on either side, and each gabled end contains a cen-
tered chimney built flush with the wall. At the northeast is ‘a one-and-one-half-
story stem with a parapet, corbelled cornices, and openings like those same elements
of the main block. A chimney at the stem's end is partially built outside the wall.

On the main block's west side is a shed-roofed appendage that appears to have been
added in the mid-I9th century. The appendage is a narrow section with entrances
centered on front and rear, and windows that have segmental relieving arches above.
The brick corbelling and parapets of the original building are absent on this addition.

Although the exterior of the Champion-Shepherdson Building is relatively unaltered,
very little of the interior's fabric remains. The stem is thought to have been used
as a kitchen at first, but the retention of a fine Federal mantel that serves an opening
much too small for cooking purposes makes this suppostion unlikely. A turn-of-the-
century dado encircles the single room of this section.

The main block's first floor contains two equal-sized spaces that are separated by an
enclosed staircase in the center. Original flooring and woodwork were removed at
an undefermined time. The second level contains several rooms that initially were
used as a family residence. Minor subdivision of rooms bas occured, buf like the
level below, flooring has been replaced and most woodwork has been removed.

The nominated property includes the building and its lot-~originally the western half
of lot #4 as identified when Princeton was established.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Champion-Shepherdson Building is significant as being the singular remnant that
reflects the earliest commerce in Princeton, Kentucky, a thriving small town in the
western section of the Commonwealth. The relatively unaltered state of the exterior
renders this early 19th-century building architectural importance and the Champion-
Shepherdson Buildings is considered a fine example of the Federal style as locally
employed in a combination commercial/residential structure.

This building, the oldest existing in Princeton, is assumed to have been constructed in
1817, the same year that Princeton was established by an act of the Kentucky Legis-
lature. It was built for Thomas Champion who operated the town's first dry goods
store in the lower level (one half of this level's space was apparantly used for retail
purposes while the other half was storage space), and who resided with his family in
the upper level (The Princeton Leader, no. 52, p. 1). In 1819 Princeton had eight

business establishments; '"Four were stores very poorly stocked, and the other fouw
were saloons'' (Baker, First History of Caldwell County, p. 40). Upon Champion's

death in 1821, the building was sold to Elijah Shepherdson;who continued its use as a
combination store/dwelling. Towards the end of the 19th century, Princeton's first
city hall was housed in the first floor, and the second floor was eventually divided

into apartments.

Princeton is the seat of Caldwell Coufny which was established in 1809. Caldwell was
settled in the late 18th and early 19th centuries, and many of its first residents had

come from South Carolina and Georgia -- these settlers being attracted by 'the

fertility of the creek and river lands, the heavy growth of timber and the abundance of

good springs' (Baker, p. 11). Princeton was situated on a major road used heavily by
emigrants heading west in the early 1800s. This route, called the '"Varmitrace,' was

part of the 1200-mile '"Trail of Tears" over which the Cherdkee - Indians were forced to cross
in the 1830s: '""The egforced trek began in the Great Smoky Mountains and led westward

to Indian Territory, costing the Cherokees nearly one-third of their population'

(Guide to Kentucky Historical Highway Markers, p. 23).

(continued)
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There are no other buildings in Princeton of the antiquity of the Champion-Shepherdson
Building. Neighboring structures mostly date from the turn-of-the=century, and

many of these have suffered from mutations. However, the exterior of the Champion-
Shepherdson Building, despite an early construction date and differing uses,

appears much as it did when constructed. Fenestration is unaltered and the only
addition was made in the mid-19th century. In its position on East Main Street,

the building is visually distinctive and is easily identifiable as being much earlier

than its neighbors. Its architectural quality is much enhanced by the clean
fenestration, the parapets on the gabled sides, the corbelled cornices, and the
pleasing proportions.

In early 1978, the Lively Arts Council-Art Guild of Princeton purchased the
Champion-Shepherdson Building with the intention of eventually converting it into
an arts center. The building will be equipped with studio: space, storage facilities
and a gallery.
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